
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTEENTH SESSION 

Official Records 

CONTEN.TS 

Agenda item 12: 
Report of the Economic and Social Council (ehapters 

VI and VII) (continued) 

General debate (continued). , • , ••• , , • • • • • • • 23 

Chairman: Mrs. Llna P. TSALDARIS (Greece). 

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Calamari 
(Panama), Vice-Chairman, took the Chair. 

AGENDA ITEM 12 
Report of the Economic and Social Council (chapters 

VI and VII) (A/3848) (continued) 
GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

1. Mrs. LEFLEROV A (Czechoslovakia) pointed out 
that her delegation had always been keenly interested 
in the activities of the Economic and Social Council. 
The development of international co-operation in the 
fields of science, culture and education was an im
portant factor in promoting friendly relations among 
nations. The Czechoslovak delegation wanted definite 
measures to be adopted in those fields and it had 
therefore requested that the question of the peaceful 
coexistence of States should be included in the agenda 
of the thirteenth session. Measures should be taken 
to direct the efforts of Governments and of United 
Nations organs, in particular of the Economic and 
Social Council. She expressed gratification concerning 
the steps recently taken by the Economic and Social 
Council (resolutions 663 I (XXIV) and 695 (XXVI)) and 
the General Assembly (resolution 1164 (XII)). She was 
awaiting with interest and confidence the results of the 
study which UNESCO was to make on exchanges and 
co-operation among peoples in the fields of science, 
culture and education, and she hoped it would subse
quently be possible to prepare an international conven
tion on the subject. The Czechoslovak Government had 
taken a series of steps to encouragemutualexchanges 
in the fields of art and science with many countries and 
to contribute thus to strengthening understanding 
among peoples. 

2. In the social field, the Economic and Social Coun
cil was perhaps not utilizing all the means available to 
it to settle the various problems before it. For several 
years now, the same items had been recurring on its 
agenda, to the detriment of certain other questions of 
equal importance. For example, the question of social 
security urgently required study. Much progress had 
been made in Czechoslovakia in the socialfield and the 
Government was anxious to adopt measures to raise 
standards of living, to protect health and welfare and 
to increase the leisure time of theworkingpopulation. 

3. The Czechoslovak delegation was pleased with the 

THIRD COMMITTEE 840th 
MEETING 

Friday, 3 October 1958, 
at 10.45 a.m. 

NEW YORK 

good results obtained by the Commission on the Status 
of Women, in whose work it had participated, but it 
felt that the Commission should be more energetic in 
its campaign for equal rights. Czechoslovakia, for 
example, ·gave women their rightful place in .both 
economic and political life. 

4. The Czechoslovak Government was following the 
work of the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF) 
with interest, and with its asslstance, was taking many 
steps to improve the condition of Czechoslovak chil
dren. In 1959, Czechoslovakia would make a contri
bution of 250,000 crowns to UNICEF. 

5. · Miss ADDISON (Ghana) noted with satisfaction the 
number and variety of the activities of UNICEF. In 
Ghana, the results achieved with the help of the Chil
dren's Fund and the World Health Organization(WHO) 
had been ·most encouraging, particularly in maternal 
and child welfare, and in the anti-malaria, anti-yaws 
and anti-leprosy campaigns. The Government of Ghana, 
which had given $14,000 to UNICEF, intended to com
plete its contribution shortly and would continue to 
co-operate with UNICEF in every way it could. 

6. The delegation of Ghana wished to congratulate 
Afghanistan upon i'ts decision, taken at great sacrifice, 
to prohibit the production of opium. 

7. In the field of human rights, the United Nations, as 
it prepared to commemorate the tenth anniversary of 
the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, could be 
proud of the work accomplished. Nevertheless, much 
remained to be done. When the eight independent 
African States had met earlier in the year at Accra, 
they had reaffirmed their devotion to the principles of 
the United Nations Charter and of the Declaration and 
pledged themselves to combat racial discrimination 
in all its forms with all the means at their disposal. 
In many areas of the world, and particularly in Africa 
south of the Sahara, the situation was far from satis
factory. The Third Committee should redouble its 
efforts to ensure respect for human rights throughout 
the world. It should do its utmost to complete its work 
on the draft Covenants. However, legal action in that 
field was not enough and there was cause for gratifi
cation in resolution 683 B (XXVI), in which the Eco
nomic and Social Council recommended that Member 
States should promote widespread teaching of the 
principles of the Declaration. 

8. In Ghana, women enjoyed full political rights and 
had equal opportunities with men for education, pro
fessional work and access to economic life generally. 
However, in other countries, women still had to strug
gle for recognition of their rights and she hoped that 
all members of the Committee would give them moral 
support and the encouragement they needed. 

9. Mr. ASIROGLU (Turkey) noted withsatisfactionthe 
remarkable work of UNICEF in maternal and child 
welfare. The number of beneficiaries, which had been 

23 A/C.3/SR.840 



24 General Assembly- Thirteenth Session- Third Committee 

30 million in 1956, had risen to 40.million in 1957 and 
would certainly exceed 50 million in 1958. The aid 
provided by UNICEF, which before 1951 had largely 
gone to European children, wasnowincreasinglybene
fiting the children of the under-developed countries. 
The fight against disease was still successful. His 
delegation was happy to note that there was close col
laboration between UNICEF, the specialized agencies 
and the United Nations Secretariat and that steps had 
been taken to make such co-operation even closer. In 
his view, success depended largely on co-ordination 
with economic and social development programmes. 
The financial situation of UNICEF was somewhat dis
quieting; the members of the Committee should urge 
their Governments to try to increase their contribu
tions to the Fund. The Turkish delegation, for its 
part, would make such an effort. 

10. With regard to international control ofnarcotics, 
the report of the Economic and Social Council was not 
very encouraging. Traffic in large quantities of nar
cotics had continued in 1957. To combatthatsituation, 
the competent authorities should impose severe penal
ties on offenders and co-operate closely with the 
authorities of other countries concerned. Technical 
assistance, too, was an effective weapon in that field, 
because drug addiction was also due to social and 
economic causes. Control should be exercised not 
only in producer countries, but also in countries of 
transit and consumption. His delegation was happy to 
note that the Commission on Narcotic Drugs had com
pleted the draft of the proposed single convention on 
narcotic drugs and hoped that the convention would 
soon come into effect. It congratulated the Government 
of Afghanistan on having courageously prohibited the 
production of opium. 

11. Considerable progress had been made in the field 
of human rights, as was. apparent from chapter VU of 
the Council's report (A/3848), but the task must be 
energetically pursued if the ideals laid down in the 
Universal Declaration of Human Rights were to be
come a reality. 

12. Mr. CHALAPATHI RAU (India) expressedappre
ciation, in general, of the manner in which the Eco
nomic and Social Council addressed itself to the ques
tions dealt with in chapters VI and VU of its report. 

13. His Government attached very great importance 
to the long-term programmes of maternal and child 
welfare and it hadbeengratifiedtofindthat the Execu
tive Board of UNICEF was interested not only in the 
immediate but also in the more distant future. The 
activities of UNICEF, which had considerable economic 
and social influence, were constantly expanding, and 
it was very encouraging to find that the under-developed 
countries were increasingly turningtoUNICEFforas
sistance. Yet, if UNICEF was to be in a position to 
discharge all its obligations, it must be supplied with 
the necessary financial means. In that connexion the 
United States Government was to be commended for 
increasing its contribution from $10 million to $11 
million. His delegation was happytorecallthatin 1958 
India had increased its contribution to the Children's 
Fund by 12 per cent and it hoped that all Governments 
would do their utmost to help UNICEF in carrying on 
with its fine work, which had already done so much to 
bring all the peoples of the world together. 

14. The report of the Permanent Central Opium 

Board !!was very encouraging in certain respects, and 
his delegation had been very gratified that diversions 
from the licit to the illicit market were now insignifi
cant. Nevertheless, as a member of the Commission 
on Narcotic Drugs, it fully realized that there was still 
a great deal to be done in that field, and it accordingly 
attached very great importance to the proposed single 
convention on narcotic drugs. The Government of 
India congratulated the Afghan Government on the 
self-denial it had shown in prohibiting the production 
of opium. The United Nations, the Governments of all 
countries and private agencies should provide that 
country with all the technical and financial assistance 
required to overcome the economic difficulties result
ing from its courageous decision. 
15. Turning to chapter VU of the Council's report, he 
recalled that as 1\ result of the combined efforts of the 
United Nations, the specialized agencies, the non
governmental organizations concerned and several. 
States, some of which were not Members of the Or
ganization, the Universal Declaration ofHumanRights 
was becoming more and more widely known in the 
world; the tenth anniversary of the Declaration should 
be marked by a wider dissemination, particularly in 
the schools, of the Purposes and Principles of the 
United Nations. 

16. The Yearbook on Human Rights was a very useful 
document serving the cause of international co-opera
tion; it was therefore to be hoped that as the recom
mendations of the Commission on Human Rights were 
given effect, the Yearbook would improve in quality, 
without losing any of its usefulness. -

17. In India, women had the same rights as men in all 
spheres; his delegation was therefore happy to note 
that seventy countries recognized the right of women 
to elect and be elected. 

18. The number of cultural exchanges between India 
and various countries in all parts of the world showed 
the considerable importance which the Indian Govern
ment attached to international co-operation in educa
tion, science and culture. In his delegation's view, the 
study which UNESCO was to prepare under Council 
resolution 695 {XXVI) would facilitate international 
exchanges and would thus serve the cause of peace, 
just as, inter alia, the two United Nations conferences 
on the peaceful uses of atomic energy had done. 

19. Mr. TOSCANO (Italy) spoke of the interest his 
country took in the activities of UNICEF, the great 
usefulness of which it had had occasion to appreciate. 
He hoped that the Children's Fund would be able to 
carry out all the projects it was contemplating for the 
immediate future. Italy warmly supported the efforts 
to improve co-ordination between UNICEF and WHO, 
the Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) and the 
Bureau of Social Affairs of the United Nations Secre
tartat, because the usefulness of such collaboration 
was self-evident. In that connexion, it should be re
called that the Fund was to collaborate in carrying out 
a UNICEF.WHO anti-tuberculosis campaignprojectto 
be started in Somaliland in January 1959. He reaffirmed 
his country's willingness to give UNICEF all possible 
assistance. 

ll Permanent Central Opium Board. Report to the Economic 
and Social Council on the Work of the Board in 1957 and 
Addendum (United Nations publication, Sales No.: 1957 .XI.3 
and Addendum). 



840th meeting - 3 October 1958 25 

20. His delegation was happy to note that the Economic 
and Social Council had asked the General Assembly 
(Council resolution 683 F (XXVI)) to hold a special 
meeting on the tenth anniversary of the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights on 10 December 1958 and 
it hoped that the Third Committee would complete its 
study of the draft InternatioDal Covenants on Human 
Rights in order to makeanindividualandstriking con
tribution to the planned celebrations. 

21. With regard to the teaching of the principles of 
the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the Italian 
National Commission for UNESCO had, with the sup
port of the Government, organized a series of special 
cour.ses for teachers. 

22. His delegation favoured the convening of a second 
conference of non-governmental organizations inter
ested in the eradication of prejudice and discrimina
tion. 

23. He congratulated the Afghan Government on its 
decision to prohibit the production of opium. 

24. Mrs. KOLOZS (Hungary} thought that the items 
before the Third Committee were such that it should 
be able to make a valuable contribution to the lessening 
of international tension. The Hungarian delegation 
would do its utmost to promote such an aim. 

25. The Hungarian Government was grateful to 
UNICEF for the help given to Hungarian children at a 
time of great difficulty, and would contribute as much 
as it could to the great humanitarian work of that body. 
26. Her delegation had taken part in the preparation 
of the proposed single convention on narcotic drugs 
and took the view that all States, whether or not they 
were Members of the United Nations, should be q.l-

. lowed to accede to the Convention, subject to any 
reservations they thought necessary. The !3<>vernment 
of Afghanistan had made a courageousdecisioninpro
hibiting op,ium production and mankind had a moral 
duty to ensure that Afghanistan should not thereby 
suffer any economic loss. 

27. Her delegation would speak at greater length on 
the report of the United Nations High Commissioner 
for Refugees (A/3828/Rev.1) when the Third Com
mittee dealt with that item of the agenda, but she wished 
to stress that the Hungarian Government, which wa~ 
concerned over the position of Hungarians who had 
left their country as a result of the events of the 
autumn of 1956 and now wished to return there, had 
already asked the High Commissioner to make it 
possible for them to do so. 

28. The Hungarian delegation recognized the value of 
the proposed Convention and Recommendation con
cerning Discrimination in respect of Employment and 
Occupation, in spite of certain shortcomings in them. 
The delegation also believed that it would be useful 
to draft another international convention regarding 
economic discrimination in the field of education, in 
particular, which constituted a serious problem to 
which insufficient attention had been given. In Hungary, 
where the Horthy n1gime had left a large legacy of 
reactionary practices, the problem had been solv~d; for 
example, as a result of an increase in the number of 
educational institutions, the number of workers' and 
peasants' children attending schools or universities 
was now proportionate to the size of the social class 
from which those children came. 

29. There should be a detailed discussion of the arti
cles of the draft International Covenants on Human 
Rights, but none the less the question of freedom of 
information merited a fuller study than had yet been 
made of it. The draft convention was of such impor
tance for international understanding that it should be 
brought to completion as soon as possible. 

30. The Commission on the Status of Women was 
doing valuable work, and there were grounds for con
gratulation that in an increasing number of countries 
women were being accorded the same rights as men. 
It should be remembered, however, that a mere legal 
recognition of women's rights was not enough, and that 
it should be applied in practice. That had, in fact, 
been done in Hungary, where all the reactionary laws 
in force under the Horthy r~gime had been annulled; 
the principle of equal pay was recognized and applied, 
and the number of women workers was continually in
creasing. Nevertheless, although women had access to 
the same work as men, they tended to predominate in 
certain types of work which suited them better, such as 
teaching an.d dispensing. Under the Horthy n1gime 44 
per cent of unskilled and semi-skilled workers had been 
women, whereas now the figure had been reduced to 29 
per cent. In contrast, there had been a considerable 
increase in the number of women on the voting register, 
in government services, in the liberal professions and 
in educational institutions. Measures taken by the 
Hungarian Government to help working mothers in- · 
eluded the establishment of seasonal creches and 
nursery schools where women agricultural workers 
could leave their children during the summer. With 
regard to retirement age, she could not agree with the 
view taken by the majority of the members of the 
Commission on the Status of Women, since it would 
not be in the interest ofwomenthatthe retirement age 
should be thesamefo·rthemasformen. Her delegation 
supported the Economic and Social Council's decision 
(resolution 680 C ll (XXVI)) to invite the Commission 
on the Status of Women to make a further study of 
that important question. 

31. Mr. SAMY (United Arab Republic) said that his 
Government attached particular importance to the 
achievements of UNICEF. In addition to UNICEF he 
wished to congratulate WHO, FAO and the Bureau of 
Social Affairs of the United Nations Secretariatforthe 
fine work they had done together. The United Arab Re
public had received help from UNICEF for certain 
projects. As a result of such help new dairies would 
shortly be openedatAleppoandDamascus. Great prog
ress had been made in the field of community develop
ment and mother and child welfare; UNICEF had pro
vided drugs, vitamins, soap and basic equipment for 
urban and rural health centres, which continued to 
increase in number. Nineteen centres, linked with the 
Health Demonstration and Training Centre at Qalyub, 
had been established with the co-operation of WHO. 
Two-hundred and fifty collective health centres under 
the Ministry of Social Affairs would for the first time 
be provided with locally trained staff, as a result of 
the opening in 1955-1956 of the Higher Institute of 
Public Health. The Government of the United Arab 
Republic looked forward to the execution in the near 
future of the bUharzia-era.dication programme an
nounced by the representative of WHO at the recent 
session of the UNICEF Executive Board, in September 
1958 and undertook to do everything in its power to 
ensure the success of the programme. Nor would his 



26 General Assembly ~ Thirteenth Session - Third Committee 

Government easily forget the help UNICEF had given cerned with UNICEF (A/3848, chap. VI, sect. 1), he 
to the Arab refugees from Palestine;·throughthathelp recalled how Poland had suffered during the last war. 
30,000 hungry mothers and children hadbeeuprovided As if it were not enough to lay waste the country the 
with milk and other foods between 1952 and 1956. Nazis had attacked its investment in the future.:_its 
32. He had had the privilege of representing his coun- children. They had closed or confiscated hospitals, 
try on the UNICEF Executive Board, and had thus been day-nurseries and kindergartens, dispersed the medi-
able to follow at first hand the efforts made on behalf cal staffs and prohibited the training of doctors, health 
of children. All nations could share m the common experts and auxiliary staff. ThepartplayedbyUNICEF 
undertaking and, forgetting their own selfish concerns, assistance in m,itigating the ravages of war and improv-
help to carry out aprogrammewhich,althoughit could ing the status of childrenhadbeenavery valuable one. 
not fully meet all urgent needs, was the fruit of an The Polish Government, for its part, had done every--
honest co-operation in which they could take a well- thing it coul~. In 1956, .ten years after the war, the 
founded pride. infant mortality rate had fallen to 71 per thousand as 

against 143 per thousand in 1932, a reduction of 
practically one half. The sums allocated to social and 
cultural services were twice those spent on national 
defence. That showed that Poland attached more im
portance to the protection of human life than to the 
accumulation Of destructive armaments. 

33. With regard to the section of the Council's report 
concerning the International control of narcotics 
(A/3848, chap. VI, sect. III), he paid a tribute to th~ 
Government of Afghanistan for its decision to prohibit 
opium production. He hoped that programmes of tech
nical and financial assistance would help Afghanistan 
to overcome the economic difficulties that would re
sult from the loss of that source of revenue. 

34. With regard to the tenth anniversary of the 
adoption of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 
his Government had established a committee, with 
members representing various ministries, the Press, 
broadcasting and higher education, to draw up pro
grammes and make recommendations on ways of mak
ing the importance of" the aims of the Declaration more 
widely known and appreciated. In that connexion he paid 
a tribute to the representative of the Philippines, Mr. 
Brillantes, for the way in which he had carried out the 
duties of Chairman of the Committee established under 
Economic and Social Council resolution 651 B {XXIV). 

35. He concluded by expressing regret thattheCoun
cil's report tended to give more emphasis to economic 
than to social questions, since the two groups of prob
lems were but the two sides of the same coin. 

36. Mr. KETRZYNSKI (Poland), referring to chapter 
VII of the Council's report, said that several inter
national instruments affecting human rights were at 
the drafting stage and that they should be brought into 
force as soon as possible. He was thinking more es
pecially of the draft Convention concerning Dis
crimination in respect of Employment and Occupation 
and the proposed convention on discrimination in 
education. The Council should take the necessary steps. 
On the other hand the Polish delegation noted with 
satisfaction the Council's decision to organize at 
Geneva in 1959 a second conference of non-govern
mental organizations interested in the eradication of 
prejudice and discrimination (resolution 683 E {XXVI)). 
He hoped that, in the future, the Council would give 
due consideration to the case of persons who had been 
the victims of so-called scientific experiments in 
Nazi concentration camps during the war and who, up 
to now, had received no compensation. 

37. The principles of the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights found expression in the social policy of 
the Polish People's Republic. During recent years 
Poland had devoted itself systematically to making 
parallel progress in the social, economic and cultural 
fields. The tenth anniversary of the Declaration would 
be a suitable opportunity for reviewing the progress 
made and for preparing the ground for newmeasures. 

38. Turning to the part of the Council's report con-

39. Poland would continue to do all it could to give 
moral and material support to the work of UNICEF· 
it had accordingly increased its contribution to th~ 
Children's Fund in the current year.Hewas however 

' ' somewhat apprehensive about the suggestion that 
UNICEF should now extend its activities to include pri
mary education. He shared the reservations which the 
representative of Canada had expressed about it 
(838th meeting). It was to be feared that the resources 
of UNICEF would be insufficient for such work. It 
would be preferable to concentrate before all else on 
the fulfilment of the current progralnme which was 
still very far from completion, and to 1e'ave the re
sponsibility for education as such to those organs 
which were better adapted to underta'ke that kind of 
work. 
40. Mr. BRILLANTES (Philippines) recalled that his 
delegation had already spoken on the work of UNICEF 
(837th meeting). On the present occasion hewouldlike 
to examine the other sections of the report of the 
Economic and Social Council (A/3848). Taken as a 
who_le, chapters VI and VII had to do with the fight 
agamst the evils which afflicted society and imposed 
restraints on those rights and freedoms which were 
the essence of human dignity. In the latest report, 
chapter VI was concerned with various specific ques
tions whereas the previous year it hadgivena general 
outline of the world's social situation, yet questions 
left out in the report for the current year had not been 
neglected, as they were considered in the report of the 
Secretary-General (A/3844). 
41. So far as narcotic drugs were concerned, the 
Permanent Central Opium Board had had to face a 
delicate problem, when Afghanistan had asked to be 
recognized as an opium producer. The Afghan Govern
ment's decision to prohibit the future production of 
that drug had removed the difficulty. 
42. He had been privileged to represent his Govern
ment on the Council Committee on the TenthAnniver
sary of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. 
The proposals submitted to the Council represented 
the most that could be achieved. He hoped that the 
resolution adopted by the Council (683 F (XXVI}), would 
be favourably received by Member States and by the 
specialized agencies. · 
43. In connexion with periodic reports and special 
studies (A/3848, chap. VII, sect. II), he drew attention 
to paragraph 478 concerningtheworkoftheCommittee 
of four members appointed by the Commission onHu-



84oth meeting - 3 October 1958 27 

man Rights to undertake a study of the right of every
one to be free from arbitrary arrest, detention and 
exile. The Philippines was represented on that Com
mittee and he could therefore quite properly express 
the hope that Member States would provide that organ 
with such information as it might need to enable it to 
carry out its task. 

44. With reference to the procedure for dealing with 
communications concerning human rights, he observed 
that it had given rise to criticisms both in the Com
mission on Human Rights and in the Economic and 
Social Council (A/3848, chap. VII, sect. VIII). The 
problem was in essence a human one and political 
considerations should not be allowed to confuse it. 
The Philippines had agreed to take part in the work of 
the committee appointed by the Commission at its 
fourteenth session to re-examine the terms of resolu
tions 75 (V) and 275 (X) of the Council and to prepare 
recommendations on that subject. Y' It was to be re
gretted that that organ had not yet met. 

Y See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, 
Twenty-sixth Session, Supplement No. 8, para 194, reso
lution 10 (XIV). 

Litho. in U.N. 

45. In resolution 1161 (XII), of which the Philippine 
delegation was one of the authors, the General As
sembly had recommended that the Economic and So
cial Council, in co-operation with the specialized 
agencies, intensify its efforts in the study and recom
mendation of measures to effect a balanced and inte
grated economic and social progress. It was as a re
sult of such progress that the evils affli.cting society 
would disappear. The Philippines would therefore 
watch with interest the measures takenbytheCouncil. 

46. The Philippine delegation recognized the extent 
and complexity of the tasks which the Council had to 
undertake. None the less it had confidence in the ex
perience, wisdom and devotion of the members of that 
organ, who were, it felt certain, capable of continuing 
the unremitting struggle for universal well-being and 
thereby strengthening the basis for a just and lasting 
peace. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

7730i-November 1958-2,075 




